MINUTES:

of the meeting of the Mole Valley Local Committee held at 14.00 on Wednesday 23rd September 2009 in the Council Chamber, Pippbrook, Dorking

Members Present - Surrey County Council

Helyn Clack, Chairman Stephen Cooksey Tim Hall Hazel Watson

Members Present - Mole Valley District Council

Derrick Burt Anne Howarth David Howell Chris Hunt Jean Pearson David Sharland

[All references to Items refer to the Agenda for the meeting]

PART ONE - IN PUBLIC

31/09 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND DECLARATIONS OF SUBSTITUTIONS [Item 1]

There were apologies for absence from Clare Curran, Christopher Townsend, Valerie Homewood. Derrick Burt is substituting for Valerie Homewood.

32/09 **DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST** [Item 2]

Hazel Watson declared a personal interest in agenda item 9. This is due to being Chair of Projects.

33/09 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING [Item 3]

- The minutes were agreed and signed as a correct record of the meeting, for the meetings, which took place on the 24th March 2009 and the 24th June 2009.
- It was agreed that representatives of the Local Strategic Partnership and the Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnership will update members with progress at the next local committee which follows on from the relevant meetings.

LOCAL PROTOCOLS [Item 4]

Local Protocols were agreed for Mole Valley Local Committee with the addition of an open forum session before the beginning of Local committee, where members of the pubic are invited to ask questions informally.



34/09 PUBLIC WRITTEN QUESTIONS [Item 5A]

All public written questions were responded to in the Local Committee (see Annexe A).

35/09 **MEMBER QUESTIONS** [Item 5B]

(i) Five Member questions were received. The questions and answers are set out in Annex B.

Councillor Watson asked the following Supplementary questions which will responded to after Local Committee by the Local Highways Manager.

- 1. Can funding for the Community Gangs be increased?
- 2. Can the Local Committee have influence over the highways maintenance budget?

36/09 **PETITIONS** [Item 6]

No petitions were received.

37/09 LOCAL PROTOCOLS ON PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT FOR RIGHTS OF WAY [Item 7]

The local committee agreed to approve amendments to its local protocol to incorporate rules for public participation in items relating to rights of way applications.

38/09 BYWAYS OPEN TO ALL TRAFFIC REPORT [Item 8]

Members were asked by Surrey County Councils Rights of Way to approve a Notice of the Intention to make a Traffic Regulation Order for Byways Open to All Traffic 515 (Shere) known as Beggars Lane, 137 (Abinger).

Tim Smith objected to these proposals and addressed the local committee.

RESOLVED

Members would like to see whether all other options have been explored. It was agreed to defer the decision until the next Mole Valley Local Committee. Rights of Way are to report back to the next Local Committee with evidence relating to the objections raised and look into other possible solutions before Traffic Regulation Order can be imposed.

39/09 UPDATE ON THE KEY PRIORITY PLACES IN MOLE VALLEY [Item 9]

Community Development Officers addressed the local committee and highlighted the headline projects from the Links and the Leatherhead Common Partnership.



Local councillors noted the report and acknowledged the good work of the community development officers and the wider Local Strategic Partnership.

Councillor Watson expressed concern that Box Hill was not a priority place. The area director explained that this is because there is not enough resource to address all areas of deprivation and therefore not all areas have been prioritised at this time. However officers agreed to raise this issue with the Local Strategic Partnership.

Councillors expressed concerns for health and safety regarding plans for farm animals at St Johns Schools. The community development officer for the LINKs area urged that we have a balanced approach regarding this, and assured the Local Committee that all health and safety procedures will be thoroughly looked into beforehand.

Councillor Hall suggested that officers look into Fetcham Friends Group and consider looking into setting up a similar group for vulnerable older people in North Leatherhead. Officers have agreed to explore this option.

RESOLVED

The Local Committee (Mole Valley) agreed to:

- (i) Note the report
- (ii) Recognise the work of partners in improving outcomes for Mole Valley priority places
- (iii) Comment on and support the work in these key priority places n Mole Vallev

40/09 £100,000 CAPITALISED REVENUE FOR HIGHWAYS [Item 10]

The Local Committee is asked to approve the use of £100,000 revenue money for highway issues in 2009/10.

RESOLVED

The Local Committee agreed the £100,000 revenue funding allocation that is available to the Local Committee in 2009/10 to used as set out in the report.

41/09 PROGRESS OF HIGHWAYS REPORT [Item 11]

The report seeks to update the Local Committee on the progress of Integrated Transport and maintenance schemes on the highway in Mole Valley District

The Local Highways manager informed the Local Committee that updates will also be sent regularly to District Members.

Councillor Hall highlighted Guildford Road and Mill Lane, as well as Epsom Road and its junction with The Crescent which need to be included in the programme of



works. The Local Highways Manager confirmed that in accordance with the Local Committee's wishes, these sites will be investigated to develop schemes for the programme of works.

RESOLVED

The Local Committee has agreed to note the report schemes, as detailed within the report.

42/09 LOCAL COMMITTEE FUNDING [Item 12]

Members were asked to support the proposals for formal approval from the funding from the Members' Local Allocation. Detailed proposals are outlined in Annexe A to the report:

• £1000 revenue Ashtead Recreation Campaign

Members are also asked to note bids that falls below the £1,000 threshold:

•	Leatherhead Youth Project (Bfree)	£600 revenue
•	Brockham Parish Council	£500 revenue
•	Charlwood Parish Council	£500 revenue
•	Buckland Parish Council	£500 revenue

RESOLVED

The Local Committee (Mole Valley):

- (i) Approved the proposals detailed in Appendix A totalling £1,000
- (ii) Noted the approval of proposals which fall below the £1,000 threshold totalling £2,100

Councillor Sharland raised free swimming as a possible local allocations funding bid. It was agreed that this issue will be discussed at the Informal meeting in November. The Local Committee and Partnership Officer is to circulate the relevant information.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION

The spending proposals put forward for this meeting have been assessed against the County standards for appropriateness and value for money and it is recommended that they should be approved

Meeting finished at 15.25pm

Chairman



Anexe A Public Question

Question from Mr Dino Adriano

Speed limit on Coles Lane

Last April the County Council was alerted to serious safety concerns posed by the decision to stop the new 40 mph speed limit in Coles Lane at the Ockley Station railway bridge. On 1st July I was advised by the Local Highways Manager concerned that he was of the opinion that extending the 40mph to the A24 was very likely to be acceptable and desirable. County officers would need to undertake an assessment to ensure compliance with policy and it would be necessary to ensure that Surrey Police agree with the proposal. Approval from the Local Committee would then be sought. As six months have passed since this matter was first raised it is disconcerting that there is no reference to the matter in the papers for the meeting to be held on 23 September. Will the Local Committee acknowledge the seriousness of this matter at the meeting on 23 September and assign priority to its resolution?

Response from Surrey Highways

The suggestion for a 40mph speed limit on Coles Lane between the A24 and the railway bridge will be included in a report for this Local Committee. It is intended that the report will be prepared for the Local Committee in 2010 and will include results of the assessment of the site. The assessment will be undertaken against Department for Transport / County Council guidelines and is made to ascertain the correct speed limit of the section of road. This site would be prioritised along with other sites for providing recommendations to the Local Committee.

Annexe A Member Questions

Questions from Councillor Hazel Watson for Dorking Hills

Community Gangs

Following cutbacks in the Highways budget this financial year, the visits by the Community Gangs are now less frequent than every 6 weeks which is causing backlogs in important Highway maintenance work. What action can be taken to restore the frequency of Community Gang visits to every 6 weeks per County Division?

Response from Local Highways Manager

Surrey Highways East has a revenue maintenance budget this financial year of £6,738,327 compared with £7,524,800 last year, and £6,595,000 the year before. The budget is divided into seven categories:

- 1. Highway Repairs;
- 2. Community Gangs:
- 3. Environment;
- 4. Drainage;
- 5. Signs & Lines;
- 6. Street Lighting & Powered Street Furniture;
- 7. Local Revenue.

The allocation of monies for each category is set by the Head of Service and the locally monies cannot be vired from one category to another. The funding level set this year for Community Gangs' was £497,000, which is only enough to cover approximately 3.5



gangs throughout the year. The East Group have agreed to slightly overspend this budget to allow for four gangs, however it has also been set by the Highways Service that the Community Gangs will do Accident & Emergency works during the working day as well as there work for Members. The above has resulted in a reduction of approximately a third in outcomes from last year, and for that the Service would apologies, however in these financially difficult times with limited budgets some constraints were / are inevitable. If Cllr Watson would like or Members generally then the Group Manager is more than happy to take members through the East Revenue Budget for which there is a presentation which will be sent out prior to the meeting.

Wotton village Speed Limit

A 30mph speed limit on the A25 through the village centre of Wotton village would help people to cross the road safely and would be consistent with other village centres of Westcott and Abinger Hammer that already have 30mph speed limits. Can Highways please review the 40mph speed limit through the centre of Wotton village on the A25 with a view to reducing it to 30mph?

Response from Local Highways Manager

The A25 at Wotton village will be placed on a list for an assessment of the speed limit. It is intended that results of the assessment will be included in a report on speed limits to be prepared for the Local Committee in 2010. The report will intend to inform the Committee of the recommended prioritisation of sites for progression with allocated funds.

Question from District Councillor David Sharland, Leatherhead South

A24 Beaverbrook Roundabout to Givons Grove Roundabout

At the Local Committee on the 26th September 2007 following an accident to two pedestrians I asked the officers what action they would take to prevent further accidents at the junction of Crabtree Drive with the A24. In the past few years we have had not only the accident to the pedestrians but motorcyclists involved in fatal accidents.

The answer to my question from the officer was: "I will endeavour to negotiate the allocation of suitable resources to consider the feasibility of providing a suitable crossing as suggested and advise Councillor Sharland accordingly." So far I have not had any further response from the officers and fatal accidents continue to occur at this location.

I am now asking for urgent action to be taken to protect pedestrians, equine users, motorists and motorcyclists at this dangerous junction.

Will the officers please consider and report what measures they are proposing to take to make the area safer.

Response from Local Highways Manager

Since the Local Committee in September 2007 the resources mentioned have not become available, which in turn has meant it has not been possible to commence a scheme design. As with all fatalities on the roads, the recent incident is being investigated by Surrey Police, following on from which some weeks later, a Coroner's report should-be produced. The Police feedback information to the Casualty Reduction Working Group for Mole Valley, which includes officers from Surrey Police, Transport for Surrey and Surrey Highways. The next meeting is scheduled for November 2009. Part of the background given to the Coroner is the collision history and of the previous 8 collisions resulting in injury on the length of road between the two roundabouts, 2 have



involved motorcycles. These two collisions occurred for different reasons and of the others, it is difficult to find any pattern. However, the site will be reconsidered by the Casualty Reduction Working Group. A scheme design and cost would need to be determined before seeking the required funding.

Barnett Wood Lane Shared Cycleway

At the Local Committee on the 26th September 2007 I asked a question relating to the shared cycleway in Barnett Wood Lane. I was informed that the output report from the Stage 3 construction was awaited. Did the report contain any recommendations for action and if so what action has or will be taken?

I was also told that the white lines around street lights positioned in the centre of the shared surface would not be laid as the lighting columns were to be repositioned to the back of the shared surface. Since the repositioning has not occurred and two years have elapsed will the officers now consider laying white lines around the street lights?

Response from Local Highways Manager

A stage 3 Safety Audit has been carried out on the this scheme and recommendations have been made and considered by Surrey Highways. Some resultant works are suggested and it is expected that works can be progressed in 2010 after agreement of details. White lines around street lighting columns have been suggested but it may be possible to move columns to the back of footway. Other suggestions include:

- Hatched markings around the telegraph pole near to the Volvo dealership.
- Some minor adjustment to some dropped kerbs in the vicinity of the access to Business Park 8 / 9.
- Some vegetation clearance at various locations.
- Reflective bands on lamp columns located within the footway.
- Tactile paving re-laid near Heathfield Close to accord with current guidance.
- The moving of a fire hydrant.
- A sign assembly being relocated onto a straight section of footway in Barnett Wood Lane instead of being located in Caen Wood Road.
- The uncontrolled crossing point being adjusted so that only dropped kerbs exist where the tactile paving is.
- Red/white reflective bands being installed on all bollards.
- The illumination of a sign at the pedestrian refuge near to Caen Wood Road.

Question from District Councillor Valerie Homewood, Beare Green

Ockley Road

The A29 Ockley Road between Beare Green roundabout and Henhurst Cross Lane has the national speed limit of 60 mph. However, there are 26 residences along this stretch of road clustered around Wigmore on the southern side and Smallburgh on the northern side. The road is straight and not very wide, and because of the speed of traffic residents find it difficult to access the road safely. On neither side of the road is there a footpath. 'Near misses' of cars attempting to leave Smallburgh drive entrance have been reported to me.

- 1. Please could the County Highways authority examine the possibility of a lower speed limit between Henhurst Cross corner and the roundabout?
- **2.** As an interim measure, could they examine the possibility of putting up signage saying 'Concealed Driveways' near Wigmore on the southern side and Smallburgh on the northern side?

K

Either measure could help to protect the safety of residents on what is currently a very fast stretch of residential road.

Response from Local Highways Manager

- 1. The suggestion for a lower speed limit will be placed on the list for future review. An assessment against Department for Transport / County Council guidelines will be made to ascertain the correct speed limit of this section of road. As with all speed limits, if it is possible to reduce the limit then approval will need to be sought from this Committee. It is intended that results of the assessment will be included in a report on speed limits to be prepared for the Local Committee in 2010. The report will intend to inform the Committee of the recommended prioritisation of sites for progression with allocated funds.
- 2. The accesses leading to Smallburgh cottages and to Wigmore are private and as such the County Council would not generally provide signs. However, all signs on the highway should adhere to the Traffic Regulations and General Directions 2002, issued by the Department for Transport and the 'concealed entrance' sign is not prescribed for use as a permanent sign.

Question from District Councillor David Howell, Ashstead Common

Waste Lorries through Ashtead High Street

Residents have noted that Britannia waste lorries which are not fully covered are again routing through Ashtead High Street along the A24. The lorries had more recently been routed through Malden Rushett thus avoiding more densely populated areas. These lorries are not covered and in the dry weather have been reported as spewing unknown waste dust and particles as they pass (often at relatively high speed) through the village.

Response to be sent to Councillor Howell after Local committee and included in the Local Committee member questions in 9th December 2009

Gas Pipework Replacement in Woodfield Lane Ashtead

Having recently had the road dug up for two services causing severe disruption, it is now time for the gas pipes to be replaced. Residents were extremely critical of the very limited hours actually worked by previous utilities' contractors when undertaking the replacement of services. Out of the normal working day for most residents, the operatives were actually on site for approximately half that time. Residents believe that Surrey County Council are too lax at granting the road closures thus enabling the utility companies to adopt a very disadvantageous method of working as far as the residents are concerned. Can officers please advise what steps are being taken to ensure that things improve and that the delays on this occasion (which currently cover the period up to Christmas) will be kept to a minimum.

Response to be sent to Councillor Howell after Local committee and included in the Local Committee member questions in 9th December 2009

Parking Restrictions near St John's School Leatherhead

Residents are complaining that the situation is getting worse with more cars on both sides of the road making access even more difficult. This is actually discouraging some residents from shopping in Leatherhead. When will new traffic orders be in place, and in the meantime is it not possible to liaise with the police in order that severe congestion on a main artery to Leatherhead can be prevented.



Response to be sent to Councillor Howell after Local committee and included in the Local Committee member questions in 9th December 2009			
cal Committee member questions in 5th December 2009			
	Chairman		

JR.